1960

Plain City Irrigation Co. v. Hooper Irrigation Co. : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal by the named irrigation companies, herein sometimes referred to as the “lower users,” and by the State Engineer of Utah, from an Order Directing Distribution of Water entered by the District Court of Weber County, Utah, on August 13, 1959. Ogden City has cross-appealed.

On April 1, 1948, the District Court of Weber County made and entered its decree adjudicating the water rights

on the Ogden River. Paragraph 7 of such decree, and particularly subdivision (a) thereof, taken in conjunction with the tabulation of rights, fixed the rights of Ogden City with respect to the flow from the 48 artesian wells at Pineview, *in exchange for which* the City was and is to release to the lower users, as directed by the State Engineer, the water to which the City is entitled by virtue of its ownership of four thousand five hundred (4,500) shares of stock of Ogden River Water Users' Association (Pineview Reservoir). The decree further provided that the City was to make all payments to the Association requisite to perfect the right to the continued use of the water represented by such shares of stock.

Ogden River Water Users' Association's storage capacity in Pineview Reservoir is 44,175 acre-feet. The Association, by contract with the United States, stores water in the reservoir under a storage right owned by the United States. Because of less than normal snow-fall on the water shed, the flow of the river in the year 1959 produced but approximately 30,915 acre-feet of water capable of being stored. This was approximately .7 of an acre-foot per share of stock, rather than a full acre-foot per share, and was obviously less than adequate to fill the needs of the shareholders. Further, 15,015 acre-feet of this total flow of 30,915 acre-feet, or approximately one-half thereof, was subject to a prior right of Utah Power & Light Company for power purposes. This 15,015 acre-feet is sometimes hereafter for convenience referred to as "power water." By virtue of its prior right, Utah Power & Light Company had the

right to require the Association to pass this power water through the reservoir, which if done would have reduced the Association's storage water to but 15,900 acre-feet, or to less than one-third of an acre-foot of water per share of stock. To avoid the necessity of passing the power water through the reservoir, and to the end of preserving by storage the full 30,915 acre-feet for the use of its shareholders, the Association in the Spring of 1959 entered into an agreement with Utah Power & Light Company whereby for a consideration the Power Company agreed to forego its right to have the power water released to it. By virtue of this agreement the Association was able to and did hold in storage for the use of its shareholders the full 30,915 acre-feet of water, amounting to approximately .7 acre-foot per share. It is the status of this 15,015 acre-feet of so-called power water under the decree referred to above, that gives rise to the present controversy. If Ogden City's prorata share of this water is water to which the City is entitled by virtue of its 4,500 shares in Ogden River Water Users' Association, then it, together with any other water to which such shares were entitled, constituted water to be released to the lower users. On the other hand, if Ogden's rights to such water arose other than under such 4,500 shares, then the water was not subject to the Decree, and the lower users had no interest therein.

The State Engineer directed Ogden River Water Users' Association to release to the lower users *all* of the water represented by the City's 4,500 shares of stock, which included the water stored by the Association under

its agreement with the Power Company. Ogden City, while not contending that the Association was without right to acquire and store the power water, and while not contending that it was not obligated to pay its prorata share of the cost thereof, nevertheless did contend that the lower users were not entitled to receive the portion of such power water as the City was entitled to under its 4,500 shares of stock, and instituted these proceedings to enjoin such release by the State Engineer and by the Association.

The determination by the lower court, from which this appeal and the cross-appeal are taken, was in sum and substance that the so-called power water was water to which the City was entitled as a shareholder in the Association, and that the City held it "in trust" for the lower users, but that the lower users might have its use only upon payment to the City of a fixed dollar amount per acre-foot.

Thus, by the determination of the court, this power water was neither fish nor fowl insofar as the adjudicating decree of April 1, 1948, is concerned. If such water was in fact water which the City held for the lower users under the decree, then the lower users were entitled to receive it without payment, as the decree obligated the City to bear the cost. On the other hand, if the power water was not subject to the decree, as contended by the City, then the City did not hold the water for the use of the lower users, as trustee or at all, and it was completely without obligation to the lower users. It is

obvious, accordingly, why all parties felt compelled to appeal.

The foregoing is perhaps an oversimplification of the litigation, but it should make for easier understanding the Statement of Facts hereinafter set out. The proceedings are in equity, and this Court has full power to review all questions of law and fact, and to set aside the order and judgment of the lower court if in this Court's opinion such order and judgment is not supported by the evidence. *Jensen v. Howell*, 75 Utah 64, 282 P. 1034; *Tanner v. Provo Reservoir Co.*, 99 Utah 139, 98 P. (2) 695; *Shaw v. Jeppson*, 121 Utah 155, 239 P. (2) 745.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A dispute and controversy existing as to the effect of the draft on or use of water from wells in the Huntsville area by Ogden City on the flow Ogden River, and the effect thereof on the rights of the appropriators and users of water from Ogden River,' known as the Upper Valley Users and the Lower Valley Users, the parties concerned entered into a stipulation dated July 23, 1929. The stipulation, among other things, provided that Ogden City agreed that when a reservoir was constructed on Ogden River, Ogden City would supply to the flow of Ogden River during the irrigation season a quantity of water from the reservoir equal to the quantity at that time drawn from the wells, which quantity it was agreed was then 20 second-feet. The stipulation was for the

settlement of the instant water rights, and was also for a trial period for gathering facts and information, and for reservoir construction; and in view of this, further provided that should the reservoir be built, Ogden City would supply to the flow of Ogden River a quantity of water from the reservoir equal to that being drawn from the wells. The Lower Valley Users' rights were stipulated, and they were entitled after the high or flood water season to the flow 135 second-feet from Ogden River and its tributaries. It further provided that if the reservoir was constructed, then so long as Ogden City supplies from the reservoir to the flow of Ogden River a quantity of water equal to the quantity at present drawn from the wells, agreed as being 20 second-feet, then the Upper Valley Users and Lower Valley Users should not question the right of Ogden City to water from Cold Water Canyon, Warm Water Canyon, and Wheeler Canyon, as well as the water from the wells (R. 2-7).

Such stipulation was incorporated wholly in a Decree of the Court dated July 31, 1929 (R. 1-8).

The reservoir was constructed, and facts and information were gained. The parties concerned, the Upper Valley Users, the Lower Valley Users, and Ogden City, had negotiations to determine the precise language and provisions to be incorporated in the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decree with respect to the adjudication of rights of all the users of water upon the Ogden River and its tributaries. On the court hearing had on April 1, 1948, a stipulation of the parties was made before the court on the language to be employed in the

Findings and Decree (R. 77, pages 2-9 particularly) and based thereon the Findings and Decree dated April 1, 1948, were made and entered. Paragraph (7) (a) and (b), and other paragraphs not here pertinent, in said Findings and Decree resulted (R. 76, pages 10, 11). Such further, in brief, provided for the permanency of the settlement of all disputes, controversies, and litigation.

Under the provisions of said paragraph (7) (a) of said Decree and Right 402 (the wells' right), Ogden City was entitled to the flow of the 48 wells located at the bottom of Pine View Reservoir, limited to 22 second-feet; and

“In exchange for the water which by diversion from such wells Ogden City withholds from the other water users of such river, said City shall set apart the water to which it is entitled upon 4500 shares of the stock of Ogden River Water Users Association, to the use of the other water users of said Ogden River to be used by them at such times and in such manner as hereinafter set out, and shall be bound to make all payments for such water requisite to perfect the rights to the continued use of the water represented by said shares of stock, which said exchange the Court decrees is a fair and equitable exchange.

“That the water represented by said 4500 shares of stock shall be distributed only during the low water period of the irrigation season to the water users as set out in the Tabulation of water rights herein, in such manner and at such times as may be determined by the State Engineer, or by his direction, by the Water Commissioner

upon the River, to be reasonably available for the use of such water users after consultation with them.”

The Decree further provided in paragraph 9-(a) thereof that water to supply rights subsequent to March, 1903, shall be shut off before the supply to rights with earlier priorities than 1903 are diminished, except that which is shown in said Tabulation as rights numbered 43 and 402 (the wells' right) which said rights numbered 43 and 402 shall not be shut off so long as the provisions of paragraph (7) herein are carried out (R. 76, page 12).

The Lower Valley Users' rights are set out in the Decree as rights 1 to 36, inclusive, having priorities from 1848 to 1890 (R. 76, pages 16-22).

Ogden City's well rights are set out therein as right 402 having priorities from 1914 to 1932 (R. 76, page 44).

The Ogden River Water Users' Association is a corporation formed on or about November 1, 1933 (R. 9). Its Articles provide, among other things, that it was organized for the purpose of purchasing, condemning, leasing, acquiring, or constructing dams, reservoirs, etc., and for the purpose of purchasing, condemning, leasing or acquiring water, water rights, and other property; and operating; and to lease, sell, or otherwise dispose of water, water rights, etc., and furnish the same to its stockholders. It was empowered to incur indebtedness, contract with the United States or other parties for the purchase, acquisition, or lease of water, water rights, etc. (R. 10-11). The stock of the corporation is assess-

able, and each stockholder shall be entitled to the ownership of not less than one acre-foot of water per annum, or so much thereof as will constitute a proportionate part of the water available for each share of stock subscribed. The total shares of stock are 44,175 (R. 11-12).

The appellant corporations are some of the owners of the water rights adjudicated to the Lower Valley Users by said Decree of April 1, 1948, and encompass rights 10, 22, 23, 24, 26, 28, 29, 31, and 32. These corporations, together with four others, were cited into court as representative of the class constituting the Lower Valley Users, the owners of rights 1 to 36, inclusive, under the water adjudication decree of April 1, 1948.

Ogden City sought by its petition and proceedings thereunder an adjudication that under the Decree of April 1, 1948, and the Articles of Incorporation of the Ogden River Water Users' Association, and the contract made by Ogden River Water Users' Association, that Ogden City is the owner of 3,400 acre-feet of water (10,000 shares times 15,015 acre-feet) as its proportionate share as a stockholder of the Association in the water acquired from Utah Power & Light Company; and that the State Engineer be enjoined and restrained from allocating or delivering any part of such waters except with its express consent, order, and approval (R. 16, 17).

44,175 shares

The appellants sought an adjudication that they, and other Lower Valley Users, were entitled to receive all of the water to which Ogden City was entitled upon

4,500 shares of its stock in Ogden River Water Users' Association under the judgment and decree herein dated April 1, 1948; that 4,500/44,175 part of the water secured by Ogden River Water Users' Association from Utah Power & Light Company is a part of the water distributable by virtue of Ogden City's ownership of said 4,500 shares of stock, and a part of the water entitlement of the Lower Valley Users; that Ogden City is bound to pay for the stock assessments upon said 4,500 shares of stock; and that the State Engineer be directed to deliver in accordance with said Decree the water upon said 4,500 shares of stock (R. 40).

The court decreed that the water acquired from Utah Power & Light Company by Ogden River Water Users' Association belonged to the Association and it acted legally and properly in allocating the same to and assessing the cost thereof against its stockholders in proportion to the amount of stock owned by each.

Further, that the water obtained from Utah Power & Light Company by the Association was not subject to paragraph (7) of the decree entered for the reason that it is additional water created or made available to the Association over and above that contemplated by the parties to the stipulation on which the decree was based, and over and above that contemplated by the court when the decree was entered.

The court ordered that so much of such water as is represented by the 4,500 shares of stock came to the City because of its holding the water represented by said 4,500 shares of stock in trust for the benefit of the Lower

Valley Users, and the City may not profit from this favorable contract which accrued to it by virtue of its fiduciary relationship to the Lower Valley Users to the prejudice of said beneficiaries. Upon the City being reimbursed in full for the extra expenses it incurred in acquiring said water and administration costs incidental thereto, and to its compliance with the terms of the Order, each of the Lower Valley Users shall have the right to the use of its proportionate share of said water, provided it pays the City's acquisition and administration costs within a reasonable time (R. 51, 52).

The court fixed Ogden City's extra expenses as \$1.28 per acre-foot and administrative cost of 6 cents per acre-foot. Ordered that the water represented by 4,500 shares of stock is 1,543 acre-feet; determined that the Lower Valley Users are entitled to purchase said water in an amount set forth in the tabulation of right numbers, names, and acre-feet set forth in Exhibit A of said Order, the computation being based on an allocation proportionate to the 156.8 second-feet low water flow rights of the Lower Valley Users. A publication of a Notice of Right to Purchase Irrigation Water was required entitling each company to ten days after publication to pay to Ogden City for water which it desired, and any water sold to be delivered by the State Engineer. Any water not paid for shall belong to Ogden City free from any fiduciary obligation or duty to sell to said Lower Valley Users (R. 52-56).

The Return of Ogden City of its Actions under Order Directing Distribution of Water showed 1,360.64 acre-

feet of water sold out of 1,544.27 available for \$1,823.25 with 183.62 acre-feet balance (R. 58, 59).

Thereupon the appeal was taken by the Appellants for their having been deprived of water to which they were entitled under the provisions of the Decree of April 1, 1948, and a cross appeal by Ogden City claiming that such water is the property of Ogden City free and clear of any trust obligations.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING THE ORDER DIRECTING DISTRIBUTION OF WATER DATED AUGUST 13, 1959, IN THAT IT IS UNSUPPORTED IN FACT AND IN LAW; THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO INCLUDE ADMITTED ALLEGATIONS OF THE PETITION, AND PARTICULARLY PARAGRAPHS 4, 5, 8, AND 10 THEREOF; AND THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING FINDINGS WHOLLY UNSUPPORTED BY PLEADINGS OR PROOF.

POINT II.

PARAGRAPH 7 OF THE DECREE HEREIN DATED THE 1st DAY OF APRIL, 1948, IS THE LAW IN THIS CASE.

POINT III.

THE COURT ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT THE WATER ALLOTTED TO OGDEN CITY, WHICH WAS OBTAINED FROM THE UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY BY THE OGDEN RIVER WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION, IS NOT SUBJECT TO PARAGRAPH 7 OF THE DECREE OF APRIL 1, 1948.

POINT IV.

THE COURT ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT THE WATER ACQUIRED BY THE OGDEN RIVER WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION FROM THE UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY WAS NOT INTENDED OR CONTEMPLATED BY THE PARTIES TO THE STIPULATION BETWEEN OGDEN CITY AND THE LOWER VALLEY USERS.

POINT V.

THE COURT ERRED IN REQUIRING THE LOWER VALLEY USERS TO PAY FOR THE WATER ACQUIRED BY OGDEN CITY BY VIRTUE OF ITS OWNERSHIP OF 4,500 SHARES OF STOCK OF THE OGDEN RIVER WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION, AND IN REQUIRING OF THE LOWER VALLEY USERS TO PAY ANY COST OR EXPENSE TO OGDEN CITY WHATSOEVER TO ENABLE THE LOWER VALLEY USERS TO SECURE SUCH WATER.

POINT VI.

THE COURT ERRED IN DETERMINING THAT ANY WATER TO WHICH IT WAS ENTITLED UPON 4,500 SHARES OF STOCK OF OGDEN RIVER WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION BELONGED TO OGDEN CITY FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN ITS DELIVERY TO THE LOWER VALLEY USERS IN EXCHANGE FOR WATER WHICH OGDEN CITY DIVERTED FROM ITS WELLS.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING THE ORDER DIRECTING DISTRIBUTION OF WATER DATED AUGUST 13, 1959, IN THAT IT IS UNSUPPORTED IN FACT AND IN LAW; THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING

TO INCLUDE ADMITTED ALLEGATIONS OF THE PETITION, AND PARTICULARLY PARAGRAPHS 4, 5, 8, AND 10 THEREOF; AND THE COURT ERRED IN MAKING FINDINGS WHOLLY UNSUPPORTED BY PLEADINGS OR PROOF.

The District Court in reaching the Order it made has used “ideas” unsupported by pleading or proof, and has failed to consider alleged and admitted allegations of fact and evidence. The ingredients for any order, decree or judgment historically have been from allegations made and admitted and from evidence. In this case the only evidence tendered and received was the minutes of June 8, 1959, of the Board of Directors of the Ogden River Water Users’ Association. Such then, plus allegations made and admitted must constitute the ingredients or the premises for the only acceptable order a court could make. Pleadings made and denied absent proof cannot certainly be premises for any conclusion and resulting order. The system devised and long utilized for the attainment of proper decisions in any matter in our courts has been the utilization of and the actual statement of facts, that is, facts alleged and proved or admitted. From these and these alone can conclusions be drawn based upon such facts from which an order, decree or judgment can be drawn firmly bottomed.

Consider then the following:

The court finds (R. 47, paragraph 2 abridged) that the Ogden River Water Users’ Association was organized for, among other purposes and objects, the purpose

and object of contracting with the United States of America to acquire for the benefit of its stockholders water originally appropriated by the United States of America and acquired right 397. That Ogden City subscribed to 10,000 shares of stock of said Association and is the owner and holder subject only to the completion of the payment of the purchase price for said shares of stock (R. 47, paragraph 3 abridged). That the Association in 1959 acquired water from the Utah Power & Light Company under Right No. 37 for the use and benefit of the Association and its stockholders (R. 48, paragraph 5 abridged); and allocated such water among its stockholders in proportion to the amount of stock held by each (R. 49, paragraph 6 abridged). The court then finds that the agreement with Utah Power & Light Company has, in legal effect, created *additional water* for the use of its stockholders not available in previous years and not contemplated as available or to be available to said Association and its stockholders by said Decree (Decree of April 1, 1948, paragraph 7) or by the parties to the stipulation upon which the Decree was entered (R. 49, paragraph 8).

Having gotten this far, the court finds that the spirit of the stipulation on which the Decree was based and the legal meaning of said decree, particularly paragraph 7 thereof, is that Ogden City holds in trust for the benefit of the "Lower Valley Users" the water represented by 4,500 shares of stock in the Association, with which we Appellants agree, but it goes on and says, the use of the water usually, and with variations to be reasonably

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