1960

Plain City Irrigation Co. v. Hooper Irrigation Co. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN MAKING THE ORDER DIRECTING DISTRIBUTION OF WATER, DATED AUGUST 13, 1959, EXCEPT IN DECLARING OGDEN CITY A TRUSTEE OF THE WATER DISTRIBUTED TO IT.

The admitted allegations of the petition which Appellants complain were not included in the Decree were not necessary to support the decree. However, the Respondent sees no objection to including those facts if the Appellants desire.

No attempt is made in this case to overturn or to modify the Decree entered by the court on April 1, 1948. The Respondent realizes as well as the Appellants that the matters determined in that suit are res adju-

dicata and are governed by that Decree. The problem in this case is what does the decree mean. Certainly a court has the power and authority upon proper petition and notice to interpret its decrees. As hereinafter argued, under different headings, it is clear that the determination by the lower court that the water acquired from the Utah Power & Light Company by the association as not contemplated or intended by the Decree of April 1, 1948, to be controlled by Paragraph 7 of that Decree. The point that the court erred in declaring the City a trustee of the water purchased from Utah Power & Light and allocated to it is covered in the City's cross appeal.

POINT II.

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN DETERMINING THAT THE WATER ALLOCATED TO OGDEN CITY, WHICH WAS OBTAINED FROM THE UTAH POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY BY THE OGDEN RIVER WATER USERS ASSOCIATION (HEREINAFTER CALLED THE ASSOCIATION) IS NOT SUBJECT TO PARAGRAPH 7(a) OF THE DECREE OF APRIL 1, 1948.

POINT III.

THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN DETERMINING THAT THE WATER ACQUIRED BY THE ASSOCIATION FROM THE UTAH POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY WAS NOT INTENDED OR CONTEMPLATED BY THE PARTIES TO THE STIPULATION AND DECREE TO BE CONTROLLED BY PARAGRAPH (7)a OF THE DECREE OF APRIL 1, 1948.

Paragraph 7 of the Decree, so far as pertinent here, reads as follows:

“That upon the stipulation this day in open Court of all of the users of water of the Ogden River and its tributaries, for the purpose of compromising and permanently settling all disputes, controversies and litigation between the appropriators and users of water from Ogden River and its tributaries, as between the appropriators and users of water in Ogden Valley, and which are shown in the Tabulation herein as right numbers 154 to 392, inclusive, and hereinafter called “Upper Valley Users”, Ogden City and the appropriators and users of water lower down on said river and which are shown in the Tabulation herein as rights numbers 1 to 36, inclusive, hereinafter called “Lower Valley Users” the Court decrees as follows:

(a) That the prior right of Ogden City to the use of all of the flow from Cold Water Creek and springs and from Warm Water Creek and Springs, and of the waters of Wheeler Creek to the extent of the capacity of its present intake is hereby established. Ogden City is likewise entitled to the flow from the forty-eight (48) artesian wells located at the bottom of Pine View Reservoir, but shall not be entitled to drill more wells in that area, except to replace by a well of like size any of said wells which may become clogged or otherwise abandoned by said City, nor shall it be entitled to accelerate the flow of such wells by pumping. However, except in the period between July 1st and September 30th, both inclusive in each year, it shall not withdraw in excess of 22 second feet of water daily average from the artesian basin in which such wells

are situated, except when the waters of Wheeler Creek are permitted to flow past its intake and so become available to other water users.

In exchange for the water which by diversion from such wells Ogden City withholds from the other water users of such river, said City shall set apart the water to which it is entitled upon 4500 shares of the stock of Ogden River Water Users Association, to the use of the water users of said Ogden River to be used by them at such times and in such manner as hereinafter set out, and shall be bound to make all payments for such water requisite to perfect the rights to the continued use of the water represented by said shares of stock, which said exchange the Court decrees is a fair and equitable exchange.

That the water represented by said 4500 shares of stock shall be distributed only during the low water period of the irrigation season to the water users as set out in the Tabulation of water rights herein, in such manner and at such times as may be determined by the State Engineer, or by his direction, by the Water Commissioner upon the River, to be reasonably available for the use of such water users after consultation with them."

The first observation is that this decree approved and confirmed an exchange of water. The effect of this exchange was that Ogden City would be allowed to withdraw water from 48 wells in the artesian basin and for that water Ogden City should set apart the water to which it is entitled upon 4500 shares of stock of the Ogden River Water Users Association for the lower users. What did that mean at the time the decree was entered? The court and everyone else involved in the

suit knew that the Association had rights Nos. 395 and 397. They further knew that the Association did not have any other rights. It did not have any right whatsoever in Right No. 37 which belonged to the Utah Power & Light Co. The court and the parties therefore must have intended that the only water Ogden City agreed to exchange for the right to withdraw water from its wells as the water represented by 4500 shares of stock in the Association, considering that the Association's right was No. 395 and 397. Certainly there could have been no intention by any party involved that Ogden City was exchanging part of Right No. 37 which was owned by the Utah Power & Light Company. The fact that the Association has an incidental power to acquire additional water was not discussed in the hearing which resulted in the April 1, 1948 Decree, and there is nothing in the record to indicate that any party or the court at any time assumed that the Association would expand its water right beyond rights Nos. 395 and 397.

The Decree says that the "City shall set apart the water to which it is entitled". That would clearly indicate that the court was speaking of the then existing water rights of the Association and not an indefinite amount which the Association may in its judgment from time to time acquire in the future. To find as the Appellants contend that the exchange applied to all waters which the Association then had, together with all water which it may thereafter acquire, is to assume that Ogden City issued a blank check to the Association for the benefit of the Lower Valley Users.

Let us consider the peculiarities on this situation.

The Association is an association of irrigation companies, Ogden City, and certain conservation districts. The majority of the Association are irrigators. Ogden City is a minority stockholder and does not have even its proportionate representation on the Board of Directors of that Association, and certainly the control of the Association is in the hands of the irrigators, some of whom are the appellant corporation. Under such an arrangement it would be ridiculous for Ogden City to agree that whatever waters are purchased by the Association shall be paid for according to stock ownership therein, but that the City's share shall be distributed 45/100 to the Lower Valley Users at no charge to them. If that is the interpretation of the decree the Appellants and their irrigator friends can charge Ogden City for a windfall benefit to the Lower Users. If the Appellants interpretation is adopted by the Court, Ogden City will have to oppose every proposed water purchase by the Association except for the Association's original rights No. 395 and No. 397, because all additional purchases would definitely be to Ogden City's disadvantage.

POINT IV.

THE BENEFITS OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER A DECREE MUST BE DEFINITE AND CERTAIN, AND NOT SUBJECT TO INDEPENDENT ACTION OF ANY BOARD OR PERSON SEPARATE FROM THE COURT IN DETERMINING WHAT THOSE BENEFITS OR LIABILITIES ARE.

The interpretation the Appellants claim for Paragraph 7 make that paragraph void for uncertainty because in effect, it delegates to the Association and to

the Utah Power & Light Co. and other potential sellers of water the determination from year to year of what the benefits to the Lower Valley Users are, and what the detriment to Ogden City is under that Decree. The water users association can, as it has many years in the past, decide not to purchase any additional water in excess of its rights Nos. 395 and 397. On the other hand, the Board of Directors of that Association can decide to purchase additional water if the Utah Power & Light Co. or other potential sellers will agree to sell the same. If the Appellant's interpretation is correct the price of the additional water would be assessed to Ogden City for approximately one-fourth thereof, and approximately half of that fourth would then go for zero price to the Lower Users. Thus the obligation of Ogden City and the benefit to the Lower Users is made entirely different from year to year by the acts of third parties, to-wit: The Ogden River Water Users Association and the Utah Power & Light Co. or other potential water sellers. This is an intolerable condition, and certainly makes this paragraph of the judgment void for uncertainty. On the other hand, if the interpretation asserted for Paragraph 7 by the Respondent is adopted by the court, that paragraph is certain and definite and does not vary from year to year and cannot be modified by any agency, not even the Ogden River Water Users Association. Under the City's contention, Paragraph 7 applies only to the water which the Association has under rights Nos. 395 and 397 and does not apply to any additional water which the Association buys or otherwise acquires.

It should be observed that any time an exchange or

trade is made, there are hazards or risks involved. The trade made and decreed was to compromise an unknown, to-wit, the extent if any the City's withdrawal of water from the artesian basin interfered with the Lower Valley Users. It was not a decreed payment by the City on an acre foot or gallonage basis for a known loss to the Lower Valley Users. It is common knowledge that a water right can vary from year to year, depending upon the precipitation and many other factors. The exchange between Ogden City and the Lower Users has those hazards. Something could happen to the wells or the diversion works thereof, or the recharge area, or many other things which could materially affect Ogden City's draw from the wells. If that occurred, could Ogden City refuse to comply with Paragraph 7 and refuse to allow the water represented by 4500 shares to go to the lower users? It could not. The decree is binding upon Ogden City, as well as on the other parties. On the other hand, if, because of minimum precipitation there is a shortage in water to the Association so that the lower users do not receive what they hoped to have received from their 4500 shares, can they then use their influence with the Association and have it buy additional water and make Ogden City pay for it? Manifestly this is unfair, and is contrary to the wording of the decree.

It must be remembered that the lower users were subject to the hazards of the amount of precipitation before the exchange was made. They had only flow rights prior to the exchange. After the exchange they have representative rights in the storage created by the reservoir which was constructed. This change would

certainly increase the possibility of their having the water during the irrigation season when needed. In addition, no determination has ever been made as to what if any effect the City's withdrawal from its wells has on other water rights, including those of the lower users. It may well be that there is little or no effect on the Lower Valley rights, considering the fact that they were flow rights, and during only the irrigation season. Be that as it may, the exchange was made as a compromise and settlement, and therefore regardless of what effect the City's withdrawal would have, the exchange approved by Paragraph 7 is now the law of the case and controlling, and this lawsuit involves strictly the interpretation of what is meant by that paragraph of that decree.

This decree was drawn after years of study, negotiation and conferences. It was drawn by able and discerning attorneys, and approved by the court. The Appellants here are seeking to modify Paragraph 7 to provide that the lower users are entitled to 4500 acre feet of water each year rather than the water to which 4500 shares of stock are entitled. Had the parties and the court at the time this decree was entered intended such a result, they very easily could have provided that the city was to supply 4500 acre-feet rather than using the words they did. It must be assumed, therefore, that the hazardous possibility of inadequate water to supply the 4500 acre-feet to the lower users was on the lower users, and that the City's obligation under the decree is to supply only the amount of water represented by 4500 shares of stock in the Association as applied to the rights which that association had at the

time the decree was entered. Undoubtedly a strict gallon for gallon exchange was not provided for in order to avoid the annual argument of which side got the most and presumably to avoid having to make the extremely difficult determination of what if any interference resulted to the Lower Valley Rights from the City's withdrawal from the wells.

POINT V.

IF THE INTERPRETATION OF THE RESPONDENT IS ADOPTED BY THE COURT, THE PURCHASE OF WATER FROM THE UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY AND ANY FUTURE PURCHASES OF WATER BY THE ASSOCIATION WAS AND WILL BE A BREACH OF THE FIDUCIARY DUTY WHICH THE DIRECTORS OF THE ASSOCIATION OWE TO OGDEN CITY AS A MINORITY STOCK HOLDER IN THAT ASSOCIATION.

Ogden City is a minority stock holder of the Association owning approximately 1/4 of the stock therein. Many of the Lower Valley Users are also minority stock holders of the Association. The Board of Directors of the Association are in a fiduciary capacity as to the stock holders of the Association, including Ogden City. If the Court determines that Paragraph 7 of the Decree applies not only to the water which the association has under its original rights Nos. 395 and 397, but it also applies to all other water which the Association acquires, it would follow that the Association has no right to acquire any additional water.

If such is the interpretation, the Board of Directors

would know that 1/4 of the additional water acquired will have to be paid for by one of its stockholders, to-wit: Ogden City and that stock holder would receive only approximately one-half of the water it paid for. The Board of Directors would also know that its proposed acquisition of additional water would result in the Lower Valley Users, most of whom are also its stock holders receiving approximately 1/8 of the water purchased for nothing and at Ogden City's expense.

Under this facts situation, the City contends that it would be a breach of the fiduciary relationship of the Board of Directors of the Association to Ogden City one of the stockholders if any additional water is purchased from the Utah Power & Light Co. or from any source.

It would be unfortunate for the Court to determine that because of the peculiar wording of the Decree the Association's power in its articles to acquire additional water is ineffective because any acquisition of water is a breach of the fiduciary duty owed by the Directors to Ogden City as a minority stock holder. The interpretation of Paragraph 7 of the Decree contended for by the Respondent avoids this problem and under such interpretation the Directors of the Association are free to acquire additional water as they in their judgment see fit.

This case seems to involve only some 1800 dollars which was collected under the lower court's order. However, it is much more important than that. If the principle is established that Ogden City must pay according to its stock ownership for water acquired by the Associ-

ation and 45% of the water allocated to it is to be distributed to the lower users without charge, there is nothing to prevent or discourage the Association from each year obtaining additional water, if not from the power company from the Weber Basin Conservancy district or from other potential sellers. It is common knowledge that much land which was formerly irrigated is now being converted to housing and the water formerly needed for that land can be purchased by other parties. The Association could purchase some of these other water rights. If the principle asserted by the Appellants is approved, the potential obligation of Ogden City is very indefinite and could be extremely detrimental. That obligation under the principle asserted by them would result in the City paying for approximately 25 per cent but receiving only approximately 14 per cent of the water so acquired.

POINTS ON CROSS-APPEAL

POINT I.

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